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CITY OF DORAL 

COUNCIL MEETING MEMORANDUM 
 
ITEM TITLE: 

A RESOLUTION OF THE MAYOR AND THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DORAL, 

FLORIDA, APPROVING A BID WAIVER PURSUANT TO SECTION 2-321 OF THE CITY’S 

CODE OF ORDINANCES, AND APPROVING A CONSTRUCTION AGREEMENT WITH 

METRO EXPRESS, INC. FOR THE PROVISION OF SIDEWALK, CURB & GUTTER, AND 

MISCELLANEOUS CONCRETE REPAIR CONSTRUCTION SERVICES FOR WORK ORDER 

No. 28 (STORMCRETE PROJECT) IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED ONE HUNDRED 

FORTY-SEVEN THOUSAND, NINE HUNDRED SEVENTY-THREE DOLLARS AND TEN 

CENTS  ($147,973.10); WHICH INCLUDES A 10% CONTINGENCY FOR ANY 

UNFORESEEN CONDITIONS; RECOGNIZING THAT METRO EXPRESS, INC. IS A CITY 

OF DORAL PRE-QUALIFIED VENDOR; AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO 

EXECUTE THE AGREEMENT AND EXPEND BUDGETED FUNDS ON BEHALF OF THE 

CITY; PROVIDING FOR IMPLEMENTATION; PROVIDING FOR INCORPORATION OF 

RECITALS; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE 

 
DEPARTMENT RECOMMENDATION: 

Approval  

 

 BRIEF HISTORY: 

On June 14, 2022, the existing contract for “Milling, Resurfacing and Miscellaneous Stormwater 

and Roadway Improvement” (ITB-2019-12) expired. Consequently, Public Works Department 

(PWD) decided not to renew its option of two (2) one (1) year periods in the best interest of 

the City and its constituents. As a result, the PWD proceeded to fragment the all-
encompassing scope of work of the previous contract to its new format of three (3) “scope 

specific” areas of construction. 

 

On April 21, 2022, The City of Doral (“City”) issued Request for Qualification No. 2022-12 

“Sidewalk, Curb & Gutter and Miscellaneous Concrete Repair Services”. A recommendation 

was made by the committee to award the top three (3) ranked firms, The American Design 

Engineering Construction Inc., GPE Engineering & General Contractor Corp., and Miliani 

Construction Corp., establishing a Pool of Construction Firms for “Sidewalk, Curb & Gutter 

and Miscellaneous Concrete Repair Services”. The Continuing Service Agreements were 

approved by the Mayor and the City Councilmembers for an initial period of three (3) years 

with an option of two (2) one (1) year renewals. The American Design Engineering 

Construction Inc. was removed from the pool as a result of lack of responsiveness and quality 

of work.  
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The PWD is in need of a firm to provide Sidewalk, Curb & Gutter and Miscellaneous Concrete 

Repair Services (the “Work”). As such, the PWD requested a proposal from the two (2) 

remaining firms on the City’s Pre-Qualified Pool of Construction Firms (GPE Engineering & 

General Contractor Corp., and Miliani Construction Corp.) for the Work. In addition to the 

above, Metro Express, Inc., an approved City Registered Vendor, was also invited to provide 

a proposal for the Work to establish a minimum of three (3) bids. 

 
This work order involves installation of “Precast Porous Concrete Gutter Panels, associated 

concrete curbing, milling and resurfacing, and new striping at two different intersections (NW 

57th Street & 114th Avenue) and at (NW 56th Terrace & 102nd Avenue). 

 

Metro Express, Inc. provided the only proposal in the amount of $147,973.10, which includes 

a 10% contingency amount for any unforeseen conditions. 

 

Please see below proposals submitted from each vendor. 

 

Metro Express, Inc., $147,973.10 

GPE Engineering No Bid 

Miliani Construction No Bid 

 

It should be noted that the project has a Florida Department of Environmental Protection 

(FDEP) Grant in an amount of $125,000.00. 

 

LEGISLATIVE ACTION: (IF APPLICABLE) 

Date: Resolution/Ordinance No. Comments 

8/9/2022 Resolution No. 22-143 Adopted 

   

   

 

FINANCIAL INFORMATION: (IF APPLICABLE) 

No. Amount Account No. Source of Funds 

1. $147,973.10 401.80005.500650 Stormwater Fund 

2. $0   

Total: $147,973.10  

Fiscal Impact Statement: The proposed item has a fiscal impact on expenditures of 

$147,973.10 

 

STRATEGIC PLAN ALIGNMENT:  

This item follows the Public Safety strategic initiative of the City’s Strategic Plan as it addresses 

roadway maintenance, asset sustainability, and helps improve safety along pedestrian facilities 

where applicable. 

 

ATTACHMENT(S): 

A. COI 

B. Bid Sheet.  

C. Construction Agreement 

D. Draft Resolution. 


